# Conquering Your Fear of Speaking in Public



McAndersen International Limited www.mcanderseninternational.com

STUDY GUIDE



Career Development Series

# **Conquering Your Fear of Speaking in Public**

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

How to Use This Guide	
Session One: Course Overview	1
Session Two: Good Communication Skills	4
Defining Communication	
Session Three: Interpersonal Skills	8
Listening	
Session Four: Getting Comfortable in Conversation	13
Four Levels  Level One: Small Talk  Level Two: Fact Disclosure  Level Three: Viewpoints and Opinions  Level Four: Personal Feelings	
Session Five: Practicing Dialogue	16
Session Six: Redesigning Yourself for Strength	17
Session Seven: Professionalism	19
Session Eight: Maximizing Meetings	21
Four Areas of Opportunity Fifteen Ways to Master a Meeting	
Session Nine: Sticky Situations	26
Session Ten: Controlling Nervousness	27
Session Eleven: Tell Me a Story	29
Recommended Reading List	30
Post-Course Assessment	31
Pre- and Post-Assessment Answer Keys	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Personal Action Plan	32

#### **How to Use This Guide**

This Self Study Guide is designed and laid out in a way that will guide student learning much in the same way that an instructor would. This workbook is comprised of modules called *Sessions*. Each Session focuses on a major concept in the course.

In each *Session*, we have included short-answer and (in some instances) multiple choice questions which relate directly to the Session material. Throughout the guide, you can take the opportunity to internalize what you have learned by completing the self-reflection exercises entitled "Making Connections."

#### **Session One: Course Overview**

#### **Course Overview**

Do you get nervous when presenting at company meetings? Do you find it hard to make conversation at gatherings and social events? Do you lock up in awkward social situations? If so, this one day workshop is just for you! It's aimed at anybody who wants to improve their speaking skills in informal situations. We'll give you the confidence and the skills to interact with others, to speak in informal situations, and to present in front of small groups.

#### **Learning Objectives**

During this workshop, you will learn to:

- Speak with more confidence in one-on-one conversations
- Feel more confident speaking socially or small groups such as meetings
- Practice developing these skills in a safe and supportive setting

objectives and reasons for taking this course.			
	_		

# **Pre-Assignment**

Let's start thinking about speaking in public! Before continuing with this course, please answer the following two questions.

uncomfortable speaking up?
What ideas do you have for becoming a better communicator?

# **Session Two: Good Communication Skills**

Good communicators seem to succeed without effort or preparation. They don't lose their notes, appear flustered, or seem nervous. Is this a sign of talent, or can we all learn to be more effective communicators?

In this session, we'll review your pre-assignment and look at some concrete steps you can take to increase your effectiveness.

# **Defining Communication**

How would you define communication?
Why do you want to develop good communication skills?

#### **Answers**

We define communication as sending messages that others understand, whether we send them by speaking, writing, or by our body language.

#### Reasons that you might want to develop good communication skills can include:

- Opportunity to express your opinion
- Change the course of a project or interaction
- Seem more knowledgeable
- Be more apt to be promoted
- Express emotions in positive ways

#### **Pre-Assignment Review**

**How do we get to be better communicators?** To make powerful, impressive, and lasting presentations, start from within.

- Talk to yourself. Clarify the message in your own mind before you try communicating it to someone else.
- Rehearse. Nothing clarifies your thoughts more than writing them down, and then saying them in different ways until you get them to where you want.
- Be very aware of the messages or inner tapes you are playing to yourself. Don't sabotage yourself by giving yourself negative messages about your ability to communicate, or about how the other person will take your message.
- Most of us are way too hard on ourselves. Plan what you will say and then be optimistic that it will come out right and be received well.
- Who is stopping you from being self-confident and self-reliant right now? I'm not stopping you. Have a look at any barriers you are putting up and make a decision to deal with them.
- When you speak to individuals, take the time to express yourself in an organized manner. Don't rush.
- Clarify. Ask for feedback. Do not assume that the message sent was the message received.
- Take part in all the activities we'll be doing today. When you take part, you are
  preparing yourself to be a leader, rather than a follower, in your workplace and your
  community. You are being a role model for your colleagues, your children, and those
  who look up to you in other ways.
- Know when to stop talking.

#### When presenting to a group, make sure you:

- o Have a message worth communicating
- Understand your audience and what their needs are
- Gain the listener's attention

- o Emphasize understanding
- o Get feedback
- o Watch your emotional tone
- o Persuade them to adopt your point of view or take the action you want them to take

### **Barriers to Communication**

#### What are some of the barriers that keep us from communicating well with others?

- Not enough time
- Everybody doesn't speak the same language
- o People use words others don't understand
- o People don't speak up, so others don't know what they are thinking
- People come from different cultures and may have different approaches for engaging in conversation
- o People are angry, sad, or happy, and this gets in the way of communication
- People make assumptions and think that they know what others mean, when they really don't know

List any other ideas here:
How might you get around the barriers that affect you the most?

# **Session Three: Interpersonal Skills**

Do you feel like you listen for what people say. Or do you feel that you better at looking like you are listening, but like so many of us, you aren't really paying attention? Listening and asking good questions are essential skills of strong speakers.

In this session, you'll learn the skills of good listening. We'll also share some tips for asking questions that get you the kind of answers that you need.

# Listening

The two most basic elements of good communication are listening to others and asking questions. The physical process of **hearing**, where sound enters your eardrum and is registered in your brain, is not the same as listening. **Listening** is more of an attitude, a desire to understand what is being communicated. It is an essential communication skill.

Many of us don't listen very well, and we fake it a lot of the time. We pretend we are listening when we really aren't, and that can create a whole lot of trouble with other people.

The good news is that we can all learn to be better listeners. We can talk about listening in terms of two types of listening:

- Passive Listening: We hear the sounds but we aren't taking an attitude that allows
  us to hear the message.
- Active Listening: We make a conscious effort to hear and understand the message.

#### **Steps to Active Listening**

- Non-verbal cues, such as eye contact, leaning toward the speaker, and an alert expression on your face.
- Short verbal cues, such as "Uh-huh," "Yes," "I understand," etc.
- o Feedback: Where the listener summarizes, clarifies, or asks questions.

**Getting ready to listen means becoming prepared psychologically**. It is like thinking, "OK, another person is taking a turn and I must get ready to listen." It is important in a group that every member finds a useful way to listen.

When we make a decision to listen for total meaning, we listen for the **content** of what is being said as well as the **attitude** behind what is being said. Is the speaker happy, angry, excited, sad, or something else entirely?

#### **Responding to Feelings**

The content (the words spoken) is one thing, but the way that people feel really gives full value to the message. Responding to the speaker's feelings adds an extra dimension of listening. Are they disgusted and angry or in love and excited? Perhaps they are ambivalent! These are all feelings that you can reply to in your part of the conversation.

#### **Reading Cues**

Really listening means that we are also very conscious of the non-verbal aspects of the conversation.

- What are the speaker's facial expressions, hand gestures, and posture telling us?
- o Is their voice loud or shaky?
- Are they stressing certain points?
- Are they mumbling or having difficulty finding the words they want to say?

#### **Demonstration Cues**

When you are listening to someone, these techniques will show a speaker that you are paying attention, providing you are not acting them out.

**Physical indicators** include making eye contact, nodding your head from time to time, and leaning into the conversation.

You can also give **verbal cues** or use phrases such as "Uh-huh," "Go on," "Really!" and "Then what?"

You can use questions for clarification or summarizing statements. Examples:

- "Do you mean they were charging \$4.00 for just a cup of coffee?"
- "So after you got a cab, got to the store, and found the right sales clerk, what happened then?"

#### **Tips for Becoming a Better Listener**

- Make a decision to listen. Close your mind to clutter and noise and look at the person speaking with you. Give them your undivided attention.
- Don't interrupt people. Make it a habit to let them finish what they are saying.
   Respect that they have thoughts they are processing and speaking about, and wait to ask questions or make comments when they have finished.
- Keep your **eyes** focused on the speaker and your **ears** tuned to their voice. Don't let your eyes wander around the room, just in case your attention does too.
- Carry a **notebook** or start a conversation file on your computer. Write down all the discussions that you have in a day. Capture the subject, who spoke more (were you listening or doing a lot of the talking?), what you learned in the discussion, as well as the who, what, when, where, why, and how aspects of it. Once you have conducted this exercise 8-10 times, you will be able to see what level your listening skills are currently at.
- Ask a few questions throughout the conversation. When you ask, people will know
  that you are listening to then, and that you are interested in what they have to say.
  Your ability to summarize and paraphrase will also demonstrate that you heard
  them.
- When you demonstrate good listening skills, they tend to be infectious. If you want people to communicate well at work, you have to set a high example.

What are some additional wa	ays of improving your listening	?

#### **Why Don't People Listen?**

Let's take a look at the problems and some possible solutions.

#### The listener has decided in advance that the speaker or the subject will be uninteresting.

This leads the listener to tune out. Instead, tell yourself you will make a real effort to learn something new during the conversation and put effort into listening.

#### The listener is distracted when someone is speaking.

Choose an area without distractions. Refuse to be distracted.

# The listener didn't adjust to what the speaker was saying. For example, you were talking about the weather, but the topic has now shifted to what the speaker did on vacation.

This requires some mental agility. You could ask the speaker to slow down and give you time to shift gears.

#### The listener took too many notes.

Rather than copy down every word, just note key points. This takes practice, but is worthwhile mastering.

#### The listener felt that what was being said was too difficult to understand so they tuned out.

The listener should ask questions to clarify, or ask the speaker to illustrate the point. The speaker can also watch for non-verbal cues that the listener is getting confused and adapt their language to help communication.

#### The listener got sidetracked by their own biases.

Let's say the speaker used the word "refugee" to refer to the people made homeless by a flood or earthquake. You prefer the word "victim." This may be important to you, but try not to raise this point until the speaker has had opportunity to complete their thoughts.

#### The listener jumped in too soon to relate their own ideas or experience.

Be patient. Listen. Give the other person their turn. Then present your ideas or experiences, if appropriate.

#### The listener listened only for the facts and didn't pay attention to body language.

This is all about increasing your awareness of those around you and how they are reacting emotionally to what is being said. Learn more about body language to help you.

#### The listener was daydreaming.

Self-discipline is required to listen. Bring yourself back to the conversation by internally saying "stop." Remember to make eye contact to connect with the speaker. This will also help you to stay engaged.

# **Asking Questions**

Get in the habit of asking good questions to clarify what has been said. We can do this by paraphrasing ("Are you saying...?") or by asking other questions such as, "Do you mean...?"

Other open questions that can gather more information include:

- O What do you think we can do about this?
- O What would you like me to stop doing?
- o Would it be helpful if I...?
- Supposing we were to...?
- o Help me understand where you're coming from?
- o Let's set a time when we can talk about the changes we're both prepared to make.
- o I'm prepared to... Would that help with the situation?

Three people that I consider t	o be good listeners:	
Three things that I can learn f	rom these people:	

# **Session Four: Getting Comfortable in Conversation**

There are many books and articles about the art of conversation, which is really about comfortably talking with people. Some people find social situations and starting or staying engaged in conversation very difficult.

*In this session,* you will explore four levels of conversation. This will help you make the transition from introductions to those heart to heart chats.

#### Four Levels

Being comfortable speaking with others in small social settings can have a big impact on both your personal and your professional life. We are all more drawn to the person who looks at ease and confident than we are the person who looks ill-at-ease and awkward. Individuals who can carry on a conversation have stronger relationships. They also tend to be more confident when it comes to speaking in public.

At work, our first encounter with another person often begins with a handshake and a smile, while looking directly at the other person. This does not include staring at another person unblinkingly, but rather, looking at their face: the eyes, nose, and mouth triangle.

#### Level One: Small Talk

What can you do to give yourself an advantage when striking up a conversation? Let's spend a little bit of time talking about the different levels on which we communicate.

Small talk means a very superficial conversation about the weather, the traffic, current events, etc. While this may seem purposeless, it isn't. This is our chance to size up another person and decide whether you have something in common. You don't know the other person and you aren't expected to reveal anything personal about yourself.

We are aware of a young teenager who had a hard time in conversation with people her own age (especially boys!). She decided that since lots of the boys she knew were interested in sports, it would be a good idea to learn about some of the sports they enjoyed, and to be able to talk about them. Not only did she manage to attract lots of new friends, she also found out how much she enjoyed sports at the same time. This technique was something that she shared with her girlfriends. Taking an interest in other people and the things they are passionate about is a great way to get into a conversation.

Things that I might use to make sm	nall talk:	
		_
		_

#### Level Two: Fact Disclosure

When the small talk phase goes well, we are ready to move onto the second level of communication with our conversational partner. We will reveal a few facts about ourselves, such as our occupation, our hobbies, or the types of activities we enjoy. Now that you are revealing a bit more about yourselves you may find more you have in common. There is give and take in this conversation as you ask and answer questions with your partner.

# Level Three: Viewpoints and Opinions

Generally people don't move to this stage until they feel comfortable with one another and believe they have found common ground when you disclosed facts in the second level. In this level you go beyond that to give your opinion of whatever it is you've been talking about.

#### **Examples:**

- Skiing is an expensive hobby
- Your dream is to ski in Jasper, Alberta
- You are counting the days to retirement
- You are hoping to move to another job soon

You may even venture into such quagmires as politics or religion if you are feeling comfortable enough to do that. The general rule is "low and slow," as in don't reveal too much too soon. You may want to commiserate about the high cost of sending a child to university today, but wait until you know the person better before you reveal that you took out a second mortgage to send your child to university.

# Level Four: Personal Feelings

This usually doesn't come until you feel very comfortable with your conversational partner. The surest way to get here is to not reveal too much too soon. An example of too much too soon might be telling someone all the details of a messy divorce just five minutes into meeting them, or upon learning someone is of a different political party, launching into a condemnation of that party.

A successful conversation starts at level one and proceeds at a comfortable pace through the second and third levels and continues to the fourth level, although usually not during your first meeting. With some people, you will find yourself moving easily through at least the first three stages, if not to stage four. It usually takes a lot of conversations with someone you feel very comfortable with before you progress to level four.

# **Session Five: Practicing Dialogue**

There is nothing at all like practice for getting better at speaking in public. While this can be challenging in a self-study course, it is not impossible! The important part is to get more comfortable with initiating and being part of conversation.

In this session, we'll ask you to think about some things that you can do to initiate dialog. We encourage you to try your ideas out with a friend or in real life.

Making Connections
Imagine that you are out shopping and you must make conversation with the shopkeeper. What might you say?

Make a promise to yourself to try out these techniques the next time that you are in this situation. You may want to role play the situation first with a friend.

# **Session Six: Redesigning Yourself for Strength**

Have you ever suffered through a presentation where the speaker mumbled or seemed totally disinterested in their topic? If you are naturally loud or soft spoken, speak quickly or slowly, or have a very pitched voice, you can learn to control your voice and sound your best.

In this session, you'll learn about elements of your voice that you can manipulate to make your voice an interesting one to tune into.

#### Introduction

Can you imagine what it must be like in broadcasting school? What about being a voice for cartoons or reading audio books? These speakers have learned how to control their voices in order to capture the attention of a listener. By paying close attention to the following elements of voice, you will see the potential for making changes to your own voice and becoming a stronger, more confident speaker.

#### Tone

Tone refers to the way that you distinguish or inflect your words. We use tone to express emotion, emphasis, contrast, and other features of our speech. Your tone tells your audience how you are feeling about the words you say. Good intonation lets others see your attitude and your enthusiasm for your subject, and demonstrates that they are consistent.

Which do you prefer: monotonous or melodious? Do your words come out pleasant and energetic, or lifeless and wooden? Think in terms of friendliness and a desire to communicate with others and develop the best intonation that you can to captivate listeners to what you have to say.

#### **Pitch**

This refers to how high or low your voice is. In most cases a **low-pitched** voice is considered an asset. Men and women who have lower voices are considered more exciting, more credible, more sociable, and more relaxed. They are also generally easier to hear when you are in the audience. If you have a **high-pitched** voice, be aware of it and consider how you can best deliver your message. If you have a high voice and will speak frequently, working with a vocal coach can be an excellent idea.

#### **Pacing**

Do you **trudge like a turtle** or **race like a rabbit** when you speak? If people cannot follow what you are saying, you'll need to slow down. Speak too slowly, however, and your credibility can

suffer. Fortunately, we can train ourselves to pause after a particularly dramatic statement, or after a question we want our audience to respond to. We can learn how to pick up the pace to create energy and to slow it down for heightened emphasis.

#### **Emphasis**

Emphasis changes the meaning of our words.

- o I was born in Boston. (You, on the other hand, were born somewhere else.)
- I was born in Boston! (How dare you suggest otherwise!)
- I was born in Boston. (I wasn't born nearby.)
- o I was born in **Boston**. (I wasn't born in Sydney or London or Bangor.)

#### **Facial Expressions**

The face conveys more messages to the listener that any other part of our body. **Positive aspects** include a smile, eye contact, relaxed facial muscles, and an alert expression. **Negative aspects** include rolling your eyes, frowning, glaring, smirking, or looking tense. If you are curious about what your face is revealing, videotape your presentation or a rehearsal and have a good look.

#### **Posture**

The way we stand conveys a lot about our level of confidence. A good posture (head up, shoulders back, both feet on the floor) says we are confident. Watch that you don't sway, rock, or pace when you are speaking to others. Moving around can show how comfortable you are speaking, but if you pace back and forth across the room, you probably look nervous and your constant movement can be distracting.

#### **Body Language**

Positives	Negatives
Open body language	Tapping your fingers or feet
Sweeping gestures	Arms crossed
Palms up	Glancing at watch
Leaning forward	Leaning back
Natural, smooth hand gestures	Tense body

#### **Session Seven: Professionalism**

It's not likely that someone who needs to speak up at a meeting or giving a presentation wants to look bad, but it happens all the time. Part of being a professional, no matter what your job is, includes looking and behaving professionally.

*In this session,* you will explore the concepts of looking professional. We'll share some tips on stepping out with a look that supports who you are.

#### **Looking Professional**

The way you look really does say a lot about you. Dressing professionally will help you be more confident when you speak, so dress the way you want to be perceived. Look like you care about what you are doing.

Always appear as **neat and clean** as possible, with hair and fingernails that are clean and neatly trimmed, and shoes that are clean and polished.

Choose your clothes carefully so that you look **trim** and **neat**. Be sure clothing fits properly. You won't feel good and you won't look good if your clothes are too tight. If they are too loose, you may look like you don't care. Dress comfortably and be proud of who you are.

You don't have to dress like a fashion maven, nor spend a lot of money trying to keep up appearances. If you are building your wardrobe, consider consignment and second hand resources, which can be an excellent way to build a wardrobe on a **budget**. Make sure that you learn the colors and styles that suit you and stick to them.

Learn how to **maintain your clothes** so that they present you in the best way possible. This means that you need to know how to iron your clothes and how to look after specialty fabrics if you have some. You'll also need to know how to reattach a button that falls off or where there is a tailor that can hem your pants.

Wait! Forget it, you're thinking! I just need to speak in a meeting, not learn how to sew!

Really? Step back and think for a moment. You enter a meeting where you need to participate. Around the table are five other people. A couple of them are, as always, nicely dressed. A few others obviously take things out of the dryer and wear them to work. They look "fine" but slightly disheveled. Who has **the edge** that you want or need in order to make a statement?

No matter what we want to believe, **your clothes matter**. You will feel much more confident if you dress up than if you dress down. **Just try it and see what happens!** 

#### **Speaking Professionally**

Here are some things to think about to help you when you are speaking. Consider each of these ideas, and then see if you can add to the list.

- O Volume: Too loud or too soft?
- o **Clichés**: We all use a few clichés but avoid them if possible.
- **Grammar**: This is too broad a topic to discuss fully today. Ask someone you trust, whose grammar is good, to give you some feedback on your grammatical errors.
- Diction: Pronounce words clearly, and watch that you aren't dropping your "-ings."
- Slang or vulgarities: No swearing or crude words.
- Gender references: Watch that you don't refer to all people in authority or "he" or all those in service positions as "she."
- Acronyms and jargon: If you must use words that are familiar terms to you but which will not be understood by others in the audience, either substitute more familiar words or explain the terms.
- Tact is diplomacy of the heart. This means saying the right thing. You know when to leave the wrong thing unsaid.

# **Session Eight: Maximizing Meetings**

Do meetings bother you as much as they bother other people? Do meetings in your organization respect people's time and effort? Nobody wants to be subjected to presentations in a meeting when all they can think about is how to get out of the room.

In this session, you'll learn about how to make the very best of meetings and to share the information that you have.

# Four Areas of Opportunity

Meetings are a central part of communication and cooperation within any organization. Don't think of them as drudgery. Recognize them as opportunities to develop skills and develop your reputation, as well as a chance to stay on top of essential organizational information.

#### Anticipate.

If you receive an agenda ahead of time, take a few minutes to look it over. If you see areas where you may have an opportunity to take the lead or to provide information to others, use that opportunity. If there is no agenda, ask for one.

#### Prepare.

Do your homework. If you plan to speak on an issue, know what you are talking about. Keep your comments positive and speak with enthusiasm. The direct, relaxed approach works best. Get quickly to your point and stay with it. If you are raising an issue of complaint or concern, it will be better received along if you include reasonable solutions. Busy people have little patience with more than they want to know. However, clarity and conciseness takes preparation.

#### Participate.

When should you speak up?

- When you know you can clarify a point
- When you can supplement pertinent information or furnish convincing statistics
- When you can correct an error
- When you wish to ask a question
- When you can give credit that's due
- When you have a good idea or an original suggestion
- When someone else has taken your idea and presents it as their own

Be brave! A great way to get more confident at speaking in front of others is to volunteer to chair meetings. Let your boss know that you want to improve and that you are up to the challenge!

#### **Concentrate on Your Message**

What does the audience need to hear? Focusing on your message and your audience instead of your nervousness will help to boost your confidence. Put the power in your message instead of holding onto it and giving you a case of nerves to deal with.

# Fifteen Ways to Master a Meeting

#### Know everybody's name.

- Get names ahead of time (they are normally on the agenda).
- o Draw a little diagram and mark in everybody and their name.
- Introduce yourself when the opportunity arises.
- Get everyone's business card.

#### Know what everybody does so you won't step on anybody's toes.

- o Ask!
- Look at their business card.
- Find out ahead of time.

#### Be careful about personal comments.

- Just don't make them!
- Some things are best discussed privately.

#### Don't create subconscious barriers to communication.

- o Be especially careful if you are in the habit of folding your arms across your chest.
- Ask someone to monitor your body language and then make a real effort to get rid
  of negative mannerisms.

#### Sit erect and square your shoulders. Look alert and lean forward slightly.

- Ask somebody you trust to monitor your body language when you are sitting and to give you feedback.
- Be aware of your body language and work at keeping a pleasant expression on your face.

#### Discuss but don't argue.

- Learn the difference.
- o Practice expressing your opinions calmly, with a pleasant expression on your face.
- Practice phrases like, "Another way we could look at this is..." or, "I see your point but have you thought about..."

The head of the table is a seat of authority. The three other important positions are those to the right or left, and, unless it is too far away, the position directly opposite. Another good position is a corner position, because you can make eye contact with more people.

o If you are free to choose any position around the table you wish, try one of these positions and see if it makes a difference in how you feel.

# If you are seated and an important person enters the room, stand up to shake hands. A woman should rise to her feet as readily as any man.

Just remember to do this.

# If you are holding the meeting, reserve the most impressive, appropriately appointed conference room, when the meeting warrants it.

- This will add status to your meeting.
- o Identify times when this would be warranted.

#### If it is your meeting, lead it!

Learn the role of a chair and fulfill that role to the best of your ability.

# If it is your meeting, have an agenda and let people know why they are attending the meeting.

 Send the agenda around ahead of time, with a clear purpose of why the meeting has been called.

#### Start and end on time.

- This is your responsibility as chair.
- Figure out how much time you have and how much time each agenda item should take
- Stick to this timeframe.
- o If people don't show up on time, start the meeting anyway. This sends the message that your meetings will start on time.
- o End on time, too.
- Respecting other people's time in this way builds your credibility as a meeting chair.

#### If it is someone else's meeting, take responsibility and participate.

- Come prepared as we've discussed.
- Read your agenda.
- o Write out your notes or get your background information together.

#### Demonstrate high energy and involvement.

- A high energy level is contagious and a valued quality in a team player.
- Try not to get distracted.
- Listen to what others around the table are saying and participate when appropriate.
- Say what you want to say and no more.

Choose one of these suggestions. Use the space below to outline a plan for implementing it t master your next meeting.			; it to		

# **Session Nine: Sticky Situations**

People can be rattled if they are called on to speak unexpectedly, or they are in the midst of a conversation and things go off track. We can all relate to someone who interrupts, asks an unexpected or off color question, or says something that makes us uncomfortable.

*In this session,* you'll consider those sticky situations, how people handle them, and what techniques you can use when you need to think on your feet.

Making Connections		
Write down a description of a type of situation that you dread.		
What have you done in the past to resolve it?		
What might you do in the future?		

# **Session Ten: Controlling Nervousness**

Being nervous is a sign that your physical and emotional self is interfering with your ability to speak. Even seasoned public speakers can get a case of nerves from time to time. What's important is to learn how to control nervousness and make the best of that energy.

In this session, you'll learn how to control nervousness so that it has as little impact as possible on your ability to speak confidently.

#### **About Nerves**

Slight nervousness is normal for anyone, especially the first few times you make a presentation or speak in public. These jitters can actually help you and give you an edge when you take that nervous energy and deliberately use it as fuel for your presentation.

Nervousness has a way of spiraling, where you may notice all of a sudden that your heart is pounding, your knees are shaking, or your voice is trembling.

The secret you want to learn is not necessarily the confidence that comes from experience (although that helps), but a change in attitude. When you learn to shift your focus from yourself to the audience, you start to release the hold that fear has on you.

One of things that you will notice is that when you are well prepared for your presentation, you will feel less nervous about it.

#### **Controlling Physical Nervousness**

- Smile. Look friendly and confident even if you don't feel that way. Your body will
  pick up on the positive energy and feelings that you generate, which will help you
  get centered.
- Take deep breaths to get oxygen into your brain.
- Pretend. There is never a better time to put on a false face of optimism and confidence.
- Your brain will respond to your positive self talk, so speak kindly to yourself.
- Athletes visualize their entire event so that their brain and body can recall the feelings of success and help them perform well. When speaking, we can receive the same benefits from visualizing that athletes do.
- Expect to do well. Give yourself lots of positive feedback.
- o **Remember** a time when you did well. Keep thinking of that time.
- Speak about things you care about, which will reduce jitters because your focus will be on the subject.
- o **Avoid caffeine**, which can increase your nervousness.

#### **Capitalizing on the Law of Attraction**

We generally **get what we expect**. We can also create circumstances to get what we want. Positive expectations are one of the most powerful, outwardly identifiable characteristics that winning personalities demonstrate.

**Evaluate your self-talk**, the inner conversations you have with yourself. A winner's self-talk sounds like this: "I did well today. I'll do even better tomorrow." "I am getting to be a better speaker every day." A loser's self-talk is more apt to be, "Murphy's Law says whatever can go wrong will go wrong," or, "If I didn't have bad luck I'd have no luck at all."

The way you treat yourself really shows in your results. If two people have equally rotten things going on in their lives (an earthquake or a tornado, for example), the positive person will recover more quickly than the negative one. Positive people live longer and are healthier than people who are negative.

Do you see where we are going with this? Embrace the **habits of positive, optimistic people** in order to develop those qualities within yourself, and you will find your fears of speaking in public much smaller than they ever were.

# **Session Eleven: Tell Me a Story**

If you're going to become a professional hockey player, you've got to strap on a pair of skates and practice, practice, and practice some more. This is how we develop skill, and speaking in public is no different.

In this session, you'll develop a quick story to share with someone. We encourage you to share it with a friend to help you get more comfortable with speaking in public.

Making Connections  Prepare a short two minute talk about an incident in your life that taught you a lesson. Make this talk about something you remember well, so you only need to jot down a few notes.					

Take some time this week to present this talk to a friend. Ask them to give you some honest feedback.

# **Recommended Reading List**

If you are looking for further information on this topic, we have included a recommended reading list below.

Berkley, Susan. Speak to Influence. Campbell Hall Press, 2004.

Boothman, Nicholas. *How to Make People Like You in 90 Seconds or Less.* Workman Publishing Company, 2000.

Carnegie, Dale. How to Win Friends and Influence People. Pocket Books, 1998 (Reprint).

- —. Public Speaking for Success. Tarcher, 2006.
- —. The Quick and Easy Way to Effective Speaking. Pocket Books, 1990.

Carnegie, Dale, and Joseph Berg Esenwein. The Art of Public Speaking. CreateSpace, 2011.

Osborn, Michael, Randall Osborn, and Suzanne Osborn. *Public Speaking (8th Edition)*. Allyn & Bacon, 2008.

Stevenson, Doug. Never Be Boring Again. Cornelia Press, 2003.

#### **Personal Action Plan**

Now that you have completed this course on **Conquering Your Fear of Speaking in Public**, how will you use the things you have learned? Creating a personal action plan can help you to stay on track and on target. When you take responsibility for yourself and your results, you get things done!

In this session, you will be asked questions to help you plan your short-term and long-term goals. This final exercise is a way for you to synthesize the learning that you have done and to put it into practice.

I am already doing these things well:				
want to improve these areas:				
have these resources to help me:				

As a result of what I have learned in this course, I am going to	My target date is	I will know I have succeeded when	I will follow up with myself on